Virginia Beach Planning Commission
Public Verbatim Hearing
September 12, 2018
Mr. Thornton: My name is Bob Thornton, service as the chairman, before we get started, I have
asked commissioner Hodgson to lead us in prayer, please stand.

Mr. Hodgson: Dear Heavenly Father, we come to you today, thanking you for your guidance and
wisdom, as we begin this hearing today guide our hearts and our minds in a spirit of fairness,
right thought and speech, help us to remember our responsibility to serve our community with
great insight guided by understanding, wisdom, and respect for all. As we make decisions today
help us to promote the common good as we work together for the betterment of our great city.
As trusted servants, we seek blessing on deliberations and on our efforts here today, Amen.

Mr. Thornton:

Thank you. Mr. Inman will lead us in the pledge.

Mr. Inman:

Group Pledge.

Mr. Thornton:
Thank you commissioner Hodgson and Inman for the prayer and the
pledge. I have asked Commissioner Dave Redmond to introduce the members.

Mr. Redmond: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I am going to start over on that my opposite site of
desk for me that lady who is sitting on the end is Ms. Kay Wilson; she is a deputy city attorney
and helps us in all of these matters. The anti-chair next to Kay is normally occupied by Jack
Wall. He is an engineer by trade and he represents the Rose Hall District, we will miss him
today. Karen Kwasny seated next to where Jack normally sits, she is a college professor and she
represents the Princess Anne District. The next empty chair unfortunately is normally occupied
by Mr. Don Horsley. He is a farmer who serves at At-large and will miss him too. He is
typically the smartest guy in the room. Next to Don is Mr. Ron Ripley. Ron is in the real estate
business and he serves At-large. Jan Rucinski is in property management and Jan represents the
Centerville District. She is also the secretary of this body. In the center of desk there in the bow
tie is Mr. Bob Thornton, he too is in the real estate business and he represents the Lynnhaven
District. Seated to Bob’s left is Dee Oliver, Dee serves At-large and she is our vice chairman.
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Next to Dee is Jeff Hodgson; Jeff represent the Beach District and he is in real estate. Mr. Mike
Inman is an attorney and all of these people from respectable source of line of work and then we
have Mr. Inman, he is the attorney. He also serves At-large and then next to me, to my right is
Mr. David Weiner; he represents the Kempsville District and he is a commercial salesman in the
building industry. My name is Dave Redmond, I represent the Bayside District, I too in the real
estate business and seated to my left is our planning director Mr. Barry Frankenfield, who will
introduce his staff.

Thank you very much Mr. Redmond. You may have noticed all your
Mr. Frankenfield:
names were up there in case anybody forgot, so we put them up there for me so staff is helping
me out because it’s most stressful time of the day, try to remember everybody’s name, so we
have them all up there, we have the staff over here. I will just read them Carolyn Smith, our
planning administrator, Kevin Kemp, our zoning administrator. Bill Lanfare, which is our
newest addition as planning evaluation coordinator, Jimmy McNamara, Kristine Gay, is here
somewhere I think, Robert Davis, Jonathan Sanders, Marchelle Coleman, and then up here we
have Pam Sandloop and Carol Dozier, and Cole Fisher was greeting you out front and we missed
Torrey Rice, who is our new city attorney to support Kay and to keep us out of trouble, so thank
you very much for being here.

Mr. Thornton:

Thank you Barry, yes Jeff.

Mr. Hodgson: I hope everybody noticed the first slide up on the presentation, everybody knows
where that is but the beautification is happening underneath the bridge at Rudee Inlet is really
amazing, so if you haven’t had a chance to go by there, it’s some pretty neat artwork that’s being
done.

Mr. Thornton: Thank you commissioner Redmond for the introductions. The first order of
business is the explanation of the rules that we use to run the meetings, commissioner Rucinski,
the secretary will explain these rules.

Ms. Rucinski: Thank you chairman Thornton. The Virginia Beach Planning Commission takes
pride and being fair and courteous to all parties and attendants. It is important that all involved
understand how the commission normally conducts its meetings. It is equally important that
everyone treat each other and members of this committee with respect and civility. The
commission requests that if you have a cell phone, to please silence it or turn it off at this time.
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This is an abbreviated explanation of the rules. A complete set of the rules is located in the front
of the planning commission agenda for today. Following is the order of business for this public
hearing. Withdrawals and deferral, the chairman will ask if there is any request for withdrawal
or deferral for any item on the agenda, consideration of these will be made first. Consent
agenda, the second order of the business is the consideration of the consent agenda or those items
which the planning commission believes are unopposed and have favorable staff
recommendation. Regular agenda, the commission will then proceed with the remaining items
on the agenda. Please note that the actions taken here today are in the form of a recommendation
to the Virginia Beach City Council. The final approval or denial for any item is made by City
Council. The commission thanks you for your attendance and we hope that your experience here
today leaves you feeling that you have been heard and treated fairly. Thank you Chairman
Thornton.
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Item #1
Crespo Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Roadrunner Towing & AC Enterprises, Inc. D/b/a Logan’s
Towing
Conditional Use Permit (Bulk Storage Yard)
5312 Virginia Beach Boulevard
District- Kempsville
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT
Ms. Oliver: Thank you Mr. Chairman, today this afternoon, we have 11 items on the consent
agenda. The first matter is agenda item number one and this is an application for conditional use
permit Bulk Storage Yard on property located at 5312 Virginia Beach Boulevard in the
Kempsville District, do we have a representative.

Eddie Bourdon:
Thank you madam Vice-Chair Oliver. For the record Eddie Bourdon,
Virginia Beach attorney representing both the land owner and the applicant on case number one.
I appreciate this item being on the consent agenda, it’s with the revised condition that I believe
you all have and again appreciate work by staff and for this being on the consent agenda.

Ms. Oliver: Great, thank you. Is there any opposition to this application being placed on the
consent agenda? Hearing none, the chairman has asked Commissioner Weiner to read this into
the record.

Mr. Weiner: Thank you Ms. Oliver. This is a conditional use permit for Bulk Storage Yard.
The northernmost 10,000 square feet of the subject property was used for former tenant as a Bulk
Storage Yard. The towing business was operating with a Conditional Use Permit when the
current property owner purchased the site in 2017 and the lease was terminated. Subsequently,
the applicant has entered into a lease for office space and the tow yard with the new property
owner. Neither, the applicant nor the property owner was aware of the need for a Conditional
Use Permit for a Bulk Storage Yard. The applicant tows for the City Police Department,
therefore, the tow yard will be used 24 hours a day, seven days a week. The applicant is seeking
a deviation from the required Category VI screening. The applicant intends to replace a portion
of the fence along the western property line, adjacent to Haynes Furniture to match the existing
solid fence along the other property. When the property to the north and east are developed, the
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required category VI landscape screening shall be installed on those sides.
recommended approval and we put it on a consent agenda.

Ms. Oliver:

The staff has

Right, thank you.

Ms. Wilson: Chairman if we could go back to the deferral on D2 that was the application of
27th and a Half Street parking garage, I think, Mr. Redmond and Mr. Ripley did you all need to
abstain from those?

Mr. Redmond: Yes, thank you by the way, that’s why she is here. I paid so little attention to
agenda item number D2 that I was unaware that it was going to be deferred and so I had intended
to abstain from agenda item D2, my employer is Divaris Real Estate Inc, they are partner in the
project 4525 Main Street Suite 900, Virginia Beach.

Ms. Wilson:

Thank you.

Mr. Ripley: And I am abstaining too because we have an interest in a company called
Telecom Systems, Inc. and I had employees that approached the applicant to do business whether
they do business or not that I don’t know but I am abstaining.
.
Mr. Thornton: Thank you.
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CONDITIONS
1. Screening and buffering shall be addressed as follows, and as depicted on the exhibit entitled
“Staff Recommended Site Layout.”
a. When the property to the north and/or east are developed, the required Category VI
landscape screening shall be installed on the northern and eastern sides of the Bulk
Storage Yard, as depicted on the exhibit entitled “Staff Recommended Site Layout.”
b. A six-foot tall solid fence shall be installed along the western boundary line.
c. A chain link fence shall be permitted along the southern boundary of the Bulk Storage
Yard.
2. All outdoor lighting shall be shielded to direct light and glare onto the premises; said lighting
and glare shall be deflected, shaded, and focused away from all adjoining property. Any new
outdoor lighting fixtures shall not be erected any higher than fourteen (14) feet.
3. Activities that will result in vehicle alarms or other noise disturbances shall be limited to the
hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.
4. Any vehicle towed to the storage yard shall be operable, with the exception of wrecked
vehicles towed to the site. A determination of operability of a wrecked vehicle shall be made
within five (5) business days of arrival at the site. No wrecked vehicle shall remain on the site for
more than (5) business days.
5. The use of the Bulk Storage Yard is limited to the storage of vehicles only.
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Item #2
Grier Han Enterprises, Inc.
Modification of Conditions (Commercial Marina)
3311 Shore Drive
District- Lynnhaven
September 12, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you. The next matter is agenda item number two and this is an application
for Modification of Conditions for a Commercial Marina on property located at 3311 on Shore
Drive in the Lynnhaven District. Is there representative for this application?

Mr. Garrington:
Thank you Ms. Oliver and members of the Planning Commission. For the
record, Billy Garrington on behalf of the applicant, Grier Hahn Industries, which as you know is
the Dockside restaurant on Shore Drive. There are two conditions in the staff write out. We are
in total agreement with those conditions and we thank you very much for placing this on consent
agenda and for the staff working with us on this. We think it’s going to be a good improvement
to this property on Shore Drive.

Ms. Oliver: Thank you. Is there any opposition to this matter being placed on the consent
agenda, hearing none, the Chairman has asked Commissioner Redmond to read that into the
record?

Mr. Redmond:
Thank you Ms. Oliver. This is an application of Grier Hahn Enterprises,
Inc. for a Modification of Conditions. It’s a very simple application. The intent is to modify, rebuild, and expand the existing dock on this portion of the water way adjacent to their restaurant.
For anybody who is familiar with this part of the City, it is genuinely a crown jewel. The
restaurants there and the atmosphere and the environment are just terrific and this will be a very
positive and welcomed addition to the neighborhood. The Planning Commission is unaware of
any opposition today to the application and so we have placed it upon our consent agenda, thank
you.
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CONDITIONS
1. With the exception of any modifications required by any of these conditions or as a result of
the Joint Permit Application approval, the additions and proposed changes to the marina shall be
developed substantially in conformance with the exhibit entitled, “CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT EXHIBIT FOR DOCKSIDE RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 3311 SHORE DRIVE,
VIRGINIA BEACH, VIRGINIA,” prepared by Gallup Surveyors & Engineers, LTD., date
March 15, 2018, as exhibited to City Council and is on file with the Department of Planning &
Community Development.
2. The applicant shall obtain Joint Permit Application approval from the Department of Planning
& Community Development prior to any construction.

8

Item #3
Providence Presbyterian Church
Conditional Use Permit
5497 Providence Road
District - Kempsville
September 12, 2018

CONSENT

Mrs. Oliver: The next matter is agenda item #3 and this is an application for a Conditional Use
Permit Child Care Education Center in a Religious Use on property located at 5497 Providence
Road located in the Kempsville District. Is there a representative on this application?

Mrs. Oliver: Hi. Welcome. If you could please state your name.
Dr. Bell: Thank you. Pastor Jeff Bell of Providence Presbyterian Church here with Ruling Elder
Gary Reese and Preschool Director Brooke Gwynn. We appreciate the time working with
Jonathan Sanders of your staff and your willingness to hear this and include it into the
neighborhood.

Mrs. Oliver: Are the conditions set forth in the application acceptable to you?

Dr. Bell: They are acceptable to us.
Mrs. Oliver: Thank you very much. Is there any opposition to this matter being placed on the
consent agenda? Hearing none the chairman has asked Commissioner Weiner to read this into
the record.

Mr. Weiner: Thank you Mrs. Oliver. This is a Conditional Use Permit request for a Child Care
Education Center in a Religious Use. This request is for Providence Presbyterian Church, the
applicant, with anticipated enrollment of 50 children with the proposed hours of operation from
7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. A small fenced in area exists within the
property to provide the children a safe and secure area to play outdoors. Staff recommends
approval and we place this on the consent agenda.
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Pam Sandloop: By recorded vote of 9-0, the items number 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and
13 have been approved by consent with Commissioner Weiner abstaining from items number 8
and 9.

CONDITIONS
1. The occupancy load for the Child Care Education Center shall be established by the City of
Virginia Beach Building Official's Office.
2. A Certificate of Occupancy shall be obtained prior to operation of the Child Care Education
Center.
3. In order to comply with Section 240.1 of the Zoning Ordinance for signage for Religious Uses
in residential districts, no more than two freestanding signs, one at each entrance, shall be
permitted on the property.
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Item #4
Nofisat Tayo Komolafe
Conditional Use Permit (Family Day-Care Home)
1961 Arlington Arch Drive
District- Centerville
September 12th, 2018

APPROVED

Mr. Thornton: Thank you. I would like to thank all the applicants who had a matter on the
consent agenda today for attending, those items will now be scheduled for hearing on the City
Council agenda. Well, thank you for coming and participating today. So you are more than
welcome to adjourn if you care to go and put some plywood up. The next order of business to
address will be the remaining one item on the agenda and I would like to ask the secretary to call
the first item please.

Ms. Sandloop: Okay agenda item number four, Nofisat Tayo Komolafe; is an application for a
Conditional Use Permit (Family Day-Care Home on property located at 1961 Arlington Arch in
the Centerville District.

Mr. Thornton: Yes, good afternoon, please state your name for the record.

Ms. Komolafe: My name is Nofisat Komolafe.

Mr. Thornton: Okay, thank you and tell us little bit about what you would like to do. The reason
that we have you speaking is because there is someone who wants to speak against your
application, So typically the way the process works is you speak first, tell us what you are going
to do. We may have some questions, then the opposition speaks, and then you have a chance to
rebut the opposition and then we make a decision, so go ahead.

Ms. Komolafe:
Thank you sir. I am seeking a Conditional Use Permit for a child care. My
husband works with the navy and we worked with the navy too, so I have provided navy child
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care at home before. I have a state license so that we can operate in both states and a navy’s
license so that’s why I am seeking a Conditional Use Permit.

Mr. Thornton: Okay, thank you. Any questions of the applicant?

Ms. Rucinski: I do, how many children do you care for?

Ms. Komolafe: I have four for now.

Ms. Rucinski: Okay, but you are looking to have up to 12.

Ms. Komolafe: Yeah.

Mr. Thornton: Other questions, thank you and now when the person opposing your application
finishes, if you would like to come back for rebuttal, we will have you back.

Ms. Komolafe: Thank you.

Mr. Thornton: Thank you.

Ms. Sandloop: Mr. Chair, we have one speaker, Bob and Pam Klein.

Mr. Thornton: Welcome, please state your name for the record.

Mr. Klein: My name is Bob Klein. Thank you for giving us time to speak. Our concern is not
necessarily about the certification or qualification of the applicant; in fact we just moved into the
neighborhood. The property we have is right next door, we haven’t introduced ourselves, and
talked, but just moved into the neighborhood. All these houses are fairly close together and right
now parking is restricted. It’s very very tight. Several homes have added parking, driveways to

12

alleviate, but still most of the homes in the neighborhood have at least one car parking on
Arlington Arch itself. So when there is a car parked on both sides, only one car can pass through.
So looking at just the time when people are coming home, there is only going to be one car and
that's going to be able to pass through Arlington Arch. There is going to be additional congestion
there if we have a home day care center that has up to 12, potentially 12 families coming to pick
up children. People are coming home at that same time, so our issue is it just doesn’t seem to be
reasonable to us, the additional congestion from a safety stand part, parking, etc.

Mr. Thornton: Okay, thank you. Any questions of the speaker? Thank you sir.

Mr. Klein: Thanks for your time.

Mr. Thornton: And if the applicant would like to come back and have a word of rebuttal if you
care to, if not, that’s perfectly okay. It seems like their concerns are traffic.

Ms. Komolafe: Yeah, thank you very much. I have parents drop off children. They have
different times they drop off. Some come in the morning and they have a different time schedule
for, you know, it’s not as if maybe all of them would come at the same time or pickup at the
same time. Everybody has a different schedule throughout the day. Some may drop in the
morning like 6 o’clock and some may drop at 9, 10, 12. Since I have started the day care, I have
never seen any congestion in the street.

Mr. Thornton: Okay, any questions of the applicant? Thank you. Well if there are no questions,
we will close the public hearing and talk amongst ourselves. Karen?

Ms. Kwasny: There was a note in here from staff, the staff recommends a condition to stagger
pickup and drop off times. Can I ask what timeframes would you designate those times or will
the applicant have to create a set of times that she would be abiding by in order to alleviate the
traffic on the street.

Mr. Kemp: Typically we leave that up to the applicant. We don’t designate certain times, and the
intent in that condition is just that she work it out with her clients so that not everyone is
dropping off in the same, let’s say 10-minute period.
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Ms. Kwasny: I think that condition would assist with the traffic congestion mentioned by the
couple that came forward.

Mr. Thornton: Is that not in there?

Ms. Kwasny: No, it’s not a condition yet; it’s a recommendation for a condition.

Mr. Thornton: I see, so you would suggest adding that condition? Okay. Other questions?

Ms. Rucinski: I have one, I don’t know if it’s just an observation, she made a comment that her
first person might come at 6 in the morning.

Mr. Thornton: Jeff.

Mr. Redmond: I mean, I would say on average we see one of these a month and this month we
have three. Over the eight years I have been on here there have been, probably, at least a 100 that
we have seen. We have not had anybody come back with complaints. I know we always bring
this up to traffic and staggering times. Have you had any complaints since we have coordinated
these?

Mr. Kemp:
Well, we have dealt with one issue that I am aware of, it was about two years ago.
There were two day-cares on the same cul-de-sac and that is the only issue I have dealt with in
my time here.

Mr. Redmond: Okay, I think it’s pretty good odds based on a 100 or so.

Ms. Kwasny: It is a condition, I need to correct myself, and it is number one.

Mr. Thornton: You said it was a condition, you were reading.
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Ms. Kwasny: I was reading the recommendation but I totally skipped over that one, it’s hardly
because I am recommending it.

Mr. Thornton: That is the condition that she has agreed to.

Mr. Redmond: I move approval of the application.

Ms. Rucinski: Second.

Mr. Thornton: Motion by Mr. Redmond, second by Jan Rucinski. We are ready to vote.

Ms. Sandloop: By the recorded vote of 9-0, agenda item number four Nofisat Tayo Komolafe has
been approved.

Mr. Thornton: Is there any further business? Hearing none, on behalf of my fellow
commissioners, I would like to thank everyone for attending today and the planning director and
the staff for excellent work, meeting adjourned.
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CONDITIONS
1. Arrival and departure times shall be staggered to avoid vehicular congestion.
2. The Family Day-Care Home shall be limited to a total of twelve (12) children, other than
children living in the home.
3. The applicant shall maintain a license for the in-home daycare operation with the
Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Social Services.
4. No more than one (1) person, other than the applicant, shall assist with the operation of the
family day-care home at any one time.
5. Any sign identifying the Home Occupation shall be non-illuminated, not more than one (1)
square foot in area and shall only be mounted flat against the residence.
6. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and inspections from the City of Virginia
Beach. Prior to operation, the applicant shall obtain a Certificate.
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Item #5
Mary Bozard
Conditional Use Permit (Residential Kennel)
2880 Indian River Road
District- Princess Anne
September 12, 2018

CONSENT
Ms. Oliver: Thank you. The next matter is agenda item number five and this is an application
for Conditional Use Permit for a Residential Kennel on property located at 2880 on Indian River
Road in the Princess Anne District. Is there a representative for this application? Hi, welcome,
please state your name for the record please.

Ms. Bozard:

My name is Mary Bozard.

Ms. Oliver:
you?

Great, thank you and are the conditions set forth in the application acceptable to

Ms. Bozard:

Yes Ma’am.

Ms. Oliver:

Great, thank you very much.

Ms. Bozard:

Thank you.

Ms. Oliver: Is there any opposition to this being placed on the consent agenda? Hearing none,
the Chairman has asked Commissioner Kwasny to read this into the record.

Ms. Kwasny: Thank you Vice Chair Oliver. This is a Conditional Use Permit request for a
Residential Kennel, as Vice Chair Oliver said at 2880 Indian River Road. The current zoning is
AG-2 Agricultural in the Princess Anne District. The applicant currently has six adult companion
dogs and the Zoning Ordinance requires a Conditional Use Permit when you have over four dogs
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and the applicant was not aware of this. Hence, why we are here today. As well as the fact that
the ordinance requires that any property occupied by animals be within 100 feet from an adjacent
property line. This is within that 100 feet and therefore they are asking for a Conditional Use
Permit to vary from that. The condition that we have added to the report is that all dogs should
be kept indoors between the hours of 10:00 p.m. .to 7:00 a.m. with the exception for brief breaks
for urination and defecation at night time. So, there was some opposition in relation to a property
next door and we were trying to alleviate their concerns about barking overnight, in particular,
and the dogs are kenneled during the day when they are let outside and so staff recommends
approval with that added condition and we put it on the consent agenda.
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CONDITIONS
1. No more than six adult dogs shall be kept on the property at any time.
2. The dog kennels shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition.
3. All animal waste from the dog kennels shall be collected and disposed of in a lawful manner
on a daily basis.
4. The applicant shall ensure that all dogs are properly vaccinated and immunized and are
licensed through the City of Virginia Beach.
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5. All dogs shall be kept indoors between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., with the
exception for brief breaks for urination and defecation.
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Item #6
Mavis Bahadosingh
Conditional Use Permit (Family Day-Care)
1605 Cliffwood Drive
District- Rose Hall
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you. The next matter is agenda item number six and this is an application
for Conditional Use Permit for a Family Day-Care Home on property located at 1605 Cliffwood
Drive in the Rose Hall District. Is there a representative on this application? Hello. welcome;
state your name for the record please.

Ms. Bahadosingh:

Hi, my name is Mavis Bahadosingh.

Ms. Oliver:

And are the conditions set forth in the application acceptable to you?

Ms. Bahadosingh:

Yes ma'am.

Ms. Oliver:

Great, thank you very much.

Ms. Bahadosingh:

Thank you.

Ms. Oliver: Is there any opposition to this application being put on the consent agenda?
Hearing none, the Chairman has asked Commissioner Hodgson to read this into the record.

Mr. Hodgson: Thank you Ms. Oliver. The applicant requests a Conditional Use Permit for a
Family Day-Care Home to care for up to 12 children within a single-family dwelling in the
Salem Woods neighborhoods. The property has an enclosed backyard for the children to play
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safely outdoors. The proposed hours are set for 24 hours a day including weekends, but typical
hours would be from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. This use is consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan’s land use policies for residential areas as it provides a valuable service for families in a
sub-urban area. The staff recommends approval. The commission is in agreement and we have
placed it on our consent agenda.
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CONDITIONS

1. Arrival and departure times shall be staggered to avoid vehicular congestion.
2. The Family Day-Care Home shall be limited to a total of twelve (12) children, other than
children living in the home.
3. The applicant shall maintain a license for the in-home daycare operation with the
Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Social Services.
4. No more than one (1) person, other than the applicant, shall assist with the operation of the
family day-care home at any one time.
5. Any sign identifying the Home Occupation shall be non-illuminated, not more than one (1)
square foot in area and shall only be mounted flat against the residence.
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6. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and inspections from the City of Virginia
Beach. Prior to operation, the applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy from the Building
Official’s Office for use of the house as a Family Day-Care Home.
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Item #7
The Edge Sports, LLC
Conditional Use Permit (Indoor Recreation Facility)
5258-A Fairfield Shopping Center
District- Kempsville
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you. The next matter is agenda item number seven and this is an
application for Conditional Use Permit for an Indoor Recreation Facility on property located at
5258-A Fairfield Shopping Center located in the Kempsville District. Is there representative on
this application? Hi, welcome; would you please state your name for the record.

Mr. Kaluchi: Craig Kaluchi.

Ms. Oliver:

And are the conditions set forth acceptable to you?

Mr. Kaluchi: Yes, they are.
Ms. Oliver: Great, thank you very much. Is there any opposition to this being placed on the
consent agenda? Hearing none, the Chairman has asked Commissioner Wiener to read this into
the record?

Mr. Weiner: Thank you Ms. Oliver. The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for
an Indoor Recreation Facility to be located within the Fairfield Shopping Center. The 18,000
square foot facility will provide baseball and softball instruction, batting and pitching cages,
retail sales related to the sports equipment, and performance training. It is anticipated up to 17
employees at the facility. The proposed typical operating hours are 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.,
Monday through Friday; 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 on Saturday; and 12:00 to 6:00 Sunday. Staff
recommends approval and we have put this on the consent agenda.
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Ms. Oliver:

Great, thank you.

Mr. Redmond: Madam Vice Chair, I would like to make a disclosure on this application. Both the
landlord and the tenant are represented by colleagues of mine in my office. They are real estate
brokers in Divaris Real Estate Inc. where I work on 4525 Main Street. I don’t have any financial
benefit in this application as a member of group, I don’t have any conflict, nonetheless I figured
out I would get that all on table, thank you.
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CONDITIONS

1. The location of the Indoor Recreation Facility shall be limited to the area depicted on the
proposed site layout on page 5 of this report, which has been exhibited to the Virginia Beach
City Council and is on file in the Department of Planning and Community Development.
2. All exterior building signage shall comply with the requirements of the City Zoning
Ordinance.
3. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and inspections from the Planning Department
and Community Development Permit and Inspections Division, Health Department, and Fire
Department. The applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy from the Building Official
prior to commencing operation.
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4. The maximum number of individuals within the facility shall not exceed the maximum number as
determined by the Fire Marshal.
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Item #8 & Item #9
Princess Anne Meadows, LLC & William Snowden and James Snowden
Conditional Rezoning (AG-1 Agricultural to Conditional R-10 Residential) & Modification
of Proffers
2800-2900 Block of Princess Anne Road
District- Princess Anne
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you, the next matter is agenda item number eight and nine and this is an
application for Conditional Rezoning in AG-1 Agricultural to Conditional R-10 Residential and a
Modification of Proffers on property located on Princess Anne Road, located in the Princess
Anne District, is there representative on this. Hello welcome.

Mr. Blawins: Good afternoon, my name is Daniel Blevins and I am here representing the owner
and the applicant.

Ms. Oliver:

Great and the conditions set forth in the application acceptable?

Mr. Blawins: Yes, they are.

Ms. Oliver: Great, thank you very much. Is there any opposition to this being placed on the
consent agenda, hearing none, the chairman has asked commissioner Kwasny to read this into the
record?

Ms. Kwasny: Thank you vice chair Oliver. This is a request for Conditional Rezoning and
Modification of Proffers in the Princess Anne District, in the 2800, 2900 block of Princess Anne
Road. This request is two-fold: a Conditional Rezoning application from AG-1 Agricultural
District to Conditional R-10 Residential District for three new parcels on 55,500 square feet of
land adjacent to the Princess Anne Meadows, residential subdivision currently under
construction. In 2016, a Conditional Rezoning to R-10 Residential District for an 80-unit single-
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family residential neighborhood on 42.45 acres of developable land was approved by the City
Council. The developer recently entered into a contract with an adjacent property owner in order
to consolidate properties and is therefore asking to create an additional three lots and to provide
additional open space on the property. The attributes are consistent with the land use policies of
the suburban area part of the comprehensive plan which calls for maintaining low-residential
density, the consolidation of parcels, open space areas which include preservation, mature tree
stands and well configured tract of land that enables the safe coordinated and attractively
designed development plan. As well, a preliminary drainage study has been done outlining the
proposed storm water strategy for the modified development, the DSC is confident that the
submitted strategy has a potential to successfully comply with storm water regulations. This site
is located within the 65-70 db DNL AICUZ Subarea Two, the city navy joint review process
reviewed the proposal and has found it keeping with density in the area. Staff recommends
approval, planning commission puts it on the consent agenda.
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PROFFERS
Proffer 1:
When the Property is developed, it shall be as a residential subdivision of single family homes,
substantially in accordance with the Plan designated “Plan of Princess Anne Meadows”, dated
September 22, 2015 and revised August 2, 2018 prepared by Kotarides Developers, which has
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been exhibited to the Virginia Beach City Council and is on file with the Virginia Beach
Department of Planning (the “Plan”).
Proffer 2:
When the Property is developed, the primary vehicular Ingress and Egress to the Property shall
be from Princess Anne Road as depicted on the Plan. The Applicant shall include in each sales
contract as well as part of the Homeowners Association Documents a Statement that the City of
Virginia Beach shall close the primary vehicular Ingress and Egress to the Property, ceasing its
use for that purpose, in the event that any roadway or public right-of-way located within the
property is connected to any roadway located outside the Property limits, and such roadway
provides a link to Princess Anne Road at its existing intersection with Tournament Drive. Such
roadway may be either ‘London Bridge Ext South’ as designated in the 2009 Master
Transportation Plan or any other roadway meeting the same or greater construction standard than
the roadways located on the Property. The City of Virginia Beach, Department of Public Works,
Engineering, Specifications and Standards shall be used to determine if the construction standard
is the same or greater.
Proffer 3:
When the Property is developed, it will be subdivided into no more than 83 single family
residential building lots. When the Property is developed, the total number of single family
dwellings permitted to be constructed on the property shall not exceed 83. Each two-story
dwelling shall contain a minimum of 2,400 square feet of enclosed living area excluding garage
and each one-story dwelling shall contain a minimum of 2,150 square feet of enclosed living area
excluding garage. Every dwelling shall have a 2-car garage and off street parking for at least two
vehicles.
Proffer 4:
When the Property is developed the areas shown on the Plan outside the 83 lots, rights-of-way to
be dedicated to the Grantee, and reservation to the Grantee for future street purposes, are
designated as Open Space areas. The Open Space areas shown on the Plan as “Forested Open
Area” shall remain in their natural state and shall not be disturbed. The Open Space areas shown
on the Plan shall be maintained by a Homeowner’s Association to be established by the Grantor
upon development of the Property. Membership in the Homeowners Association shall be
mandatory.
Proffer 5:
When the Property is developed, street lights shall be a black colonial head mounted on a black
pole at distances and heights to be determined during site plan review.
Proffer 6:
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The Applicant shall submit for review by the Director of Planning, during site plan review and
prior to the application for building permits, the exterior elevations, architectural features and
building materials for each of the home designs proposed for construction. The exterior building
materials shall be a combination of architectural shingles, raised metal seam roof accents, Hardie
Plank or similar fiber cement siding, or masonry, as depicted or substantially similar to the
Exhibits entitled “Princess Anne Meadows Elevations”, which are on file with the Virginia
Beach Department of Planning.
Proffer 7:
Further conditions may be required by the Grantee during Subdivision Plan review and
administration of applicable City Codes by all cognizant City agencies and departments to meet
all applicable City Code requirements.
Proffer 8:
The above conditions, having been proffered by the Applicant and allowed and accepted by the
Grantee as part of the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance, shall continue in full force and effect
until a subsequent amendment changes the zoning of the Property and specifically repeals such
conditions. Such conditions shall continue despite a subsequent amendment to the Zoning
Ordinance even if the subsequent amendment is part of a comprehensive implementation of a
new or substantially revised Zoning Ordinance until specifically repealed. The conditions,
however, may be repealed, amended, or varied by written instrument recorded in the Clerk’s
office of the circuit Court of the City of Virginia Beach, Virginia, and executed by the record
owner of the Property at the time of recordation of such instrument, provided that said instrument
is consented to by the Grantee in writing as evidenced by a certified copy of an ordinance or a
resolution adopted by the governing body of the grantee, after a public hearing before the
Grantee which was advertised pursuant to the provisions of Section 15.2-2204 of the code of
Virginia, 1950, as amended. Said ordinance or resolution shall be recorded along with said
instrument as conclusive evidence of such content, and if not so recorded, said instrument shall
be void.
Proffer 9:
The Grantor covenants and agrees that:
a. The Zoning Administration of the City of Virginia Beach, Virginia, shall be vested with all
necessary authority on behalf of the governing body of the City of Virginia Beach, Virginia, to
administer and enforce the foregoing conditions and restrictions, including the authority (i) to
order in writing that any non-compliance with such conditions be remedied and (ii) to bring legal
action or suit to insure compliance with such conditions including mandatory or prohibitory
injunction, abatement, damages or other appropriate action, suit or proceedings.
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b. Failure to meet all conditions and restrictions shall constitute cause to deny the issuance of any
of the required building or occupancy permits as may be appropriate.
c. If aggrieved by any decision of the Zoning Administrator made pursuant to the provisions of
the City Code, the Zoning Ordinance, or this Agreement, the Grantor shall petition the governing
body of Grantee for the review of such decision prior to instituting proceedings in court.
d. The Zoning Map shall show by an appropriate symbol on the Map the existence of conditions
attaching to the zoning of the Property on the map and that the ordinance and the conditions may
be readily available and accessible for public inspection in the office of the Zoning Administrator
and in the Planning Department and that they shall be recorded in the Clerk’s Office of the
Circuit Court of the City of Virginia Beach, Virginia, and indexed in the name of the Grantor and
Grantee.
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Item #10
Anderson’s Virginia Beach, LLC
Conditional Use Permit (Outdoor Recreation Facility)
1925 Fisher Arch
District- Princess Anne
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you. The next matter is agenda item number 10. And this is an application
for a Conditional Use Permit for an Outdoor Recreation Facility on property located at 1025
Fisher Arch, located in the Princess Anne District. Is there a representative for this application?
Hi, welcome: state your name for the record please.

Mr. Blanchet: I am Jason Blanchet. Thanks for having me. I am the owner of Anderson’s
Virginia Beach.

Ms. Oliver:

Great and are the conditions set forth acceptable to you?

Mr. Blanchet: Yes ma'am.

Ms. Oliver: Thank you very much. Is there any opposition to this being placed on the consent
agenda? Hearing none, the Chairman has asked Commissioner Inman to read this into the
record?

Mr. Inman: Thank you, this is a request for a Conditional Use Permit for a miniature golf
course known as an Outdoor Recreational Facility. It is owned and operated by Anderson’s
Garden Center, which has been there for few years now. It is zoned B-2 Community Business
District and the surrounding uses are varied, involving some farm land, some residential uses, a
church and a pump station. The property was re-zoned in 2014 and subsequently Anderson’s
build a very nice Garden Center on the site. They found that they have room for a recreational
facility on the site. They have requested this use permit so that they can have a miniature golf

31

course, which you see on the screen there. The submitted layout, which depicts an
approximately 9,700-square foot golf course with walkways and putting surfaces constructed
with permeable material and plant material that will act as infiltration rain gardens. A pavilion
designed to offer shade to customers and for social events is depicted at the south end of the
course and will have low voltage lighting. There are couple of conditions that they submit the
site plan for review and that the recreation facility be limited to the area depicted on the
proposed site plan layout. All light fixtures shall be shielded and angled away from adjacent
residential uses. The Comprehensive Plan designates this area as part of the City’s Transition
Area, which serves as a unique buffer between the low density rural area from the more density
developed suburban area. This proposal meets the criteria with the Comprehensive Plan and we
have chosen to put it on the consent agenda.
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CONDITIONS
1. Prior to construction of the miniature golf course, a site plan in substantial conformance to the
site layout entitled “MINIATURE GOLF CONCEPT PLAN 1925 FISHER ARCH, VB
BEACH” by ANDERSON’S LANDSCAPES, dated AUG 2018, shall be submitted for detailed
site plan review and approval. Said plan is on file in the Department of Planning and Community
Development.
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2. The location of the Outdoor Recreation Facility shall be limited to the area depicted on the
proposed site layout on page 5 of this Staff Report, which has been exhibited to the Virginia
Beach City Council and is on file in the Department of Planning and Community Development.
3. When the property is developed, the pavilion and fence shall have architectural features, and
appearance of like quality and character as depicted on page 6 of this Staff Report, entitled
“Proposed Pavilion Elevation and Fence Design,” which has been exhibited to the Virginia
Beach City Council and is on file with the Virginia Beach Department of Planning and
Community Development.
4. All light fixtures shall be shielded and angled away from the adjacent residential uses.
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Item #11
Jasmeen Gould
Conditional Use Permit (Family Day-Care Home)
4440 Pissarro Drive
District- Rose Hall
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you very much. The next matter is agenda item number eleven and this is
an application for a Conditional Use Permit for a Family Day-Care Home on property located at
4440 Pissarro Drive, which is located in the Rose Hall District. Is there a representative for this
application? Welcome; state your name for the record please.

Ms. Gould:

Jasmeen Gould.

Ms. Oliver:

Thank you and are the conditions set forth in the application acceptable to you?

Ms. Gould:

Yes ma'am.

Ms. Oliver: Great, thank you so much. Is there any opposition to this application being placed
on the consent agenda? Hearing none, the Chairman has asked Commissioner Rucinski to read
this into the record.

Ms. Rucinski: Thank you Commissioner Oliver. The applicant requests a Conditional Use
Permit for a Family Home Day-Care for up to 12 children within a single-family dwelling in the
Salem Woods neighborhood. The property has an enclosed backyard for the children to play
safely outdoors. The proposed typical hours of operation will be from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Monday through Friday. The proposed Conditional Use Permit for this request, in staff’s
opinion, is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s land use policies for residential areas and
will provide a valuable service for families in the suburban area. To alleviate the potential of
congestion for client parking in the right-of-way, Staff recommends a condition to stagger pickup
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and drop off times. For the reason stated above, Staff recommends approval of this application.
The applicant, as you heard, is agreeable to the conditions. Therefore, we have placed it on the
consent agenda.
AYE 9
HODGSON

NAY 0

ABS 0

AYE

HORSLEY

ABSENT

INMAN

AYE

KWASNY

AYE

OLIVER

AYE

REDMOND

AYE

RIPLEY

AYE

RUCINSKI

AYE

THORNTON

AYE

WALL
WEINER

ABSENT 2

ABSENT
AYE

CONDITIONS
1. Arrival and departure times shall be staggered to avoid vehicular congestion.
2. The Family Day-Care Home shall be limited to a total of twelve (12) children, other than
children living in the home.
3. The applicant shall maintain a license for the in-home daycare operation with the
Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Social Services.
4. No more than one (1) person, other than the applicant, shall assist with the operation of the
family day-care home at any one time.
5. Any sign identifying the Home Occupation shall be non-illuminated, not more than one (1)
square foot in area and shall only be mounted flat against the residence.
6. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and inspections from the City of Virginia
Beach. Prior to operation, the applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy from the Building
Official’s Office for use of the house as a Family Day-Care Home.
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Item #12
Kyle W. & Bailey B. Fett
Subdivision Variance (4.4 (b) of the Subdivision Regulations)
633 Princess Anne Road
District- Princess Anne
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT

Ms. Oliver: Thank you. The next matter is agenda item number 12 and this is an application
for a Subdivision Variance to Section 4.4 (b) of the Subdivision Regulations on property located
at 633 Princess Anne Road located in the Princess Anne District. Welcome.

Mr. Bourdon: Thank you, madam vice chair, Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, for
the record Eddie Bourdon, Virginia Beach attorney representing Mr. and Ms. Fett. Unfortunately
I do too many of these little clean up things but appreciate the work of staff, the one condition is
acceptable and appreciate being on the consent agenda.

Ms. Oliver: Thank you very much. Is there any opposition to this application being placed on
the consent agenda? Hearing none, the Chairman has asked Commissioner Ripley to read this
into the record.

Mr. Ripley: This is a parcel land at a very lower part of the City on Princess Anne Road below
the Pungo Ferry Bridge Road. So it’s way down there. As Eddie eluded to, it was transferred by
deed or established by deed but never really a plat was recorded. So this is a plat being recorded,
as a result it doesn’t fit within the minimum plat size, and it has 99 feet versus 150 feet. It
contains 32,016 square feet, which is three quarters of an acre versus an acre. These things come
here routinely, so this is one of them and we felt that it ought to be on consent, Planning Staff
recommends approval, so it’s on consent.
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CONDITIONS
1. When the property is subdivided, it shall be substantially in accordance with the submitted
subdivision exhibit entitled “SUBDIVISION OF PROPERTY OF KYLE W. FETT & BAILEY
B. FETT” dated June 28, 2018 and prepared by WPL. Said exhibit has been exhibited to the
Virginia Beach City Council and is on file in the Department of Planning and Community
Development. A final plat shall be recorded with the Clerk of Court reflective of the layout
referenced herein.
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Item #13
City of Virginia Beach
Burton Station Strategic Growth Area Master Plan 2018
September 12th, 2018

CONSENT
Ms. Oliver: Thank you very much. Mr. Chairman that was the last item on the consent
agenda, so I would like to move that to approve consent, oh we have thirteen, well I am sorry. I
missed that. So the next matter is agenda item number thirteen, and this is an application for an
ordinance to adopt and incorporate into the Virginia Beach comprehensive plan, the Burton
Station Strategic Growth Area Master Plan 2018 which will supersede the Burton Station
Strategic Growth Area Master Plan 2009 and to amend the Executive Summary, and Sections 1.2
(Urban Areas), and Chapter 3 (Plan Implementation and Agenda for Future Action) of the
Comprehensive Plan 2016 pertaining to the Burton Station Strategic Growth Area Plan. A
member of our staff, Mark Shea, is going to explain this and read it into the record.

Mr. Shea: Chairman, vice chairman, and planning commissioners. This concludes an concluding
approximately year along effort to update the existing Burton Station Plan from 2009. We have
had extensive citizen participation with this and have had a number of briefings with the
planning commission and city council. Based on feedback from our public participation process,
we are confident of the public support of the plan and I recommended approval.

Ms. Oliver:

Great. Thank you very much.

Mr. Thornton: That’s all.

Ms. Oliver: And that is it Mr. Chairman, that was the last item on the consent agenda and I
would like to move that we approve consent agenda items number one, two, three, five, six,
seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven, twelve, and thirteen.

Mr. Thornton: Motion made by vice chair Oliver, do I have a second?

38

Ms. Hodgson: Second.

Mr. Thornton: Second by commissioner Hodgson
.
Mr. Weiner: I need to abstain on items number eight and nine, my company Batchelder &
Collins Granby street in Norfolk is working with that up again on my project.
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Mr. Thornton: Any other, ready to vote.

Ms. Sandloop: Vote is open. By the recorded vote of 9-0, agenda items one, two, three, five, six,
seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven, twelve, and thirteen have been approved by consent with
commissioner Weiner abstaining from items eight and nine.
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Item #14
City of Virginia Beach
Permitting requirements for fencing
September 12th, 2018

DEFERRED

Mr. Thornton: Thank you as Jan said the first order of business is to deal with those items that
are to be deferred or withdrawn. I have been informed that items 14, D1 and D2 have all been
requested to be deferred, is there any opposition or anyone that wants to speak to those matters
before we move on that. May I have a motion to defer item 14, D1, and D2 and D2 I think the
request was for a 30-day deferral, the others are city matters.

Ms. Oliver:

Mr. Chairman I would like to move that items 14, D1, and D2 to be deferred.

Ms. Rucinski: Second.

Mr. Thornton: Second and with the provision that D2 would be for 30 days.

Ms. Oliver:

With the provision that D2 would be for 30 days.

Mr. Thornton: We have a motion from vice chair Oliver and a second from commission
Rucinski.

Ms. Sandloop: By the recorded vote of 9-2, items 14, D1, and D2 have been deferred, D2 being
deferred for 30 days.

(Carolyn Smith discussed with Pam Sandloop on the vote actually being 9-0 instead of 9-2. Ms.
Sandloop thought that with our two board members absent, that those counted as abstentions.)
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Item #D1
City of Virginia Beach
Communication Towers
September 12th, 2018

DEFERRED

Mr. Thornton: Thank you as Jan said the first order of business is to deal with those items that
are to be deferred or withdrawn. I have been informed that items 14, D1 and D2 have all been
requested to be deferred, is there any opposition or anyone that wants to speak to those matters
before we move on that. May I have a motion to defer item 14, D1, and D2 and D2 I think the
request was for a 30-day deferral, the others are city matters.

Ms. Oliver:

Mr. Chairman I would like to move that items 14, D1, and D2 to be deferred.

Ms. Rucinski: Second.

Mr. Thornton: Second and with the provision that D2 would be for 30 days.

Ms. Oliver:

With the provision that D2 would be for 30 days.

Mr. Thornton: We have a motion from vice chair Oliver and a second from commission
Rucinski.

Ms. Sandloop: By the recorded vote of 9-2, items 14, D1, and D2 have been deferred, D2 being
deferred for 30 days.

(Carolyn Smith discussed with Pam Sandloop on the vote actually being 9-0 instead of 9-2. Ms.
Sandloop thought that with our two board members absent, that those counted as abstentions.)
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Item #D2
27 ½ Street Garage, LLC
2613 Atlantic Avenue
District – Beach
September 12th, 2018

DEFERRED

Mr. Thornton: Thank you as Jan said the first order of business is to deal with those items that
are to be deferred or withdrawn. I have been informed that items 14, D1 and D2 have all been
requested to be deferred, is there any opposition or anyone that wants to speak to those matters
before we move on that. May I have a motion to defer item 14, D1, and D2 and D2 I think the
request was for a 30-day deferral, the others are city matters.

Ms. Oliver:

Mr. Chairman I would like to move that items 14, D1, and D2 to be deferred.

Ms. Rucinski: Second.

Mr. Thornton: Second and with the provision that D2 would be for 30 days.

Ms. Oliver:

With the provision that D2 would be for 30 days.

Mr. Thornton: We have a motion from vice chair Oliver and a second from commission
Rucinski.

Ms. Sandloop: By the recorded vote of 9-2, items 14, D1, and D2 have been deferred, D2 being
deferred for 30 days.

(Carolyn Smith discussed with Pam Sandloop on the vote actually being 9-0 instead of 9-2. Ms.
Sandloop thought that with our two board members absent, that those counted as abstentions.)
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Mr. Thornton: Thank you. The next order of business are those items that we are going to place
on the consent agenda, the vice chair will handle this portion of the agenda.
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